INTERNATIONAL

Distr,
COVENANT GENERAL
ON CIVIL AND o
POLITICAL RIGHTS ENGLISH
N I Originals FRENCH

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMITTEE
Eleventh session
SUMMARY RECQRD OF THE 251st MEETING
Held at the.Palais‘des Nations, Geneva,
on VYednesday, 22 October 1980, at 3 p.m.
thiggggi.' Mr. MAVROMATTIS

later: My. PRADO VALLEJO

CONTENTS

Consideration of reports submitted by States parties under article 40
of the Covenant (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of, the working languages. They
should be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record.
They should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the Official
Records Bditing Section, room E-6108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

‘ Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
’ consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after the end of the
session. ' R
' GE.80-16789




CCPR/C/SR.251
page 2

The meeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m.

CONSIDERATION CF REPCRTS SUBMITTED BY STATES PARTIES UNDER ARTICIE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item 4 ) (continued )

Report of Denmark (CCPR/C/1/Add.19 and Add.51) (continued)

1. Mr, HOIM (Denmark), replying to questions raised by members of the Committee,
maintained that, as far as article 11 of the Covenant was concerned (CCPR/C/l/Add.Bl,
pages 5 and 6), the obligation to pay meintenance to a child or a spouse did not
come under that article in view of the fact that it could not be regarded as =
contractual obligation since it originated in.the actual provisions of the law.

2. In connection with article 13 of the Covenant, he recalled that the Report
(pages 8 to 11) cited a large number of legislative provisions under which aliens
could be expelled and noted that that article of the Covenant in question concerned
only the procedure for expulsion and not the merits of a possible decision.

He recognized that, as some members of the Committee had emphasized, Danish
legislation in that area was rather complicated.,  He also pointed out that the law
in that area was being revised by a committee established for that purpose, and
particularly to look into questions of competence in the matter of expulsion and

of the monitoring of expulsion decisions, Its task would be to give an opinion on
the broad discretionary powers which current legislation conferred on the competent
administrative authorities: It had already reported on some of its work, which
did not as yet include procedural aspects, however. The Governmeni of Denmark did
not deny that aliens in its territory were protected by the provisions of the
Covenant and that the country's authorities must see to it that the decisions taken
under their discretionary powers complied with that instrument and other relevant
agreements to which Denmark was a party.

3. The legal procedure was governed by the general principles applicable to

legal practice. Denmark had no administrative law distinct from other areas of law.
The procedure was usually in writing. Nevertheless, an alien could request an oral
hearing and had the option of presenting his case orally before a representative

of the competent administration. With regard to the acquisition of Danish nationality,
he referred to pages 24~26 of the report.

4. With respect to the independence of the judiciary, he said that Judges were
appointed by the King on the TYecomimendation of the Minister of Justice. All -judges
were appointed for life, until the age of retirement.  Their impartiality was
guaranteed by article 64 of the Constitution. Furthermore, a judge could not be
transferred or rémoved against his will except by a judicial decision.’“fAnnex 1

to document CCPR/C/1/Add+19 contiined a diagram of the Danish judicial system

in which there was a 'réference to the exigtence of the Spécial Court of Revision,
composed of three judges, and competent in first and last instance in disciplinary
matters.

5. The principles applicable in Denmark provi&ed that all legal proceedings:were
public and oral wherever possible., His Government had, nevertheless, entered a
reservation, which it maintained, regarding the requirement of a public hearing




CCPR/C/SR.251"
vage 3

set out in article 14, paragraph 1 of the Covenant (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 12).

That paragraph provided for closed hearlndo solely in order’ to protect "the interest.
. of the private lives of the parties", whereas Danish law protected the private lives

of the witnesses also and therefore provided fuller protectlon than did the Covenant.

. 6. He pointed out'that, in Denmarkg JudlClal overs1ght of admlnlstratlve deolslons
was within the competence of the ordinary courts, just as it was in Ireland, Norway
or the United Kingdom for example. There was no administrative Jjudicial system
parallel to the civil or criminal system. The ordinary courts might hear any
proceeding to Set aside a decision or to seek damages, wiere appropriate. In the
event of g fallure to act on the part of an administrative. authorlty or of .
excessive delay;, practice authorlzed an appeal to a higher authorlty or referral
to the Ombudsman, although there was virtually no.case law-in that area.

7. As for paragraph 2 of article 14 of the Covenant (CCPR/C/l/Add 51, page 12),
Danish legislation was similar in that respect to Norwegian legislation. The

. Public Prosecutor's Office could shelve a case if it thought that there was insufficient
evidence to obtain s verdict of guilty in the court concerned, regardless of the -
person's actual innocence or otherwise. Similarly, it was entitled to enter a
nolle prosequi if the accused had pleaded guilty in court and accepted the court’
conditions for a relinquishment of prosecution. ‘

8. With respect to paragraph 3 of article 14 of the Covenant (CCPR/C/1/Add.51,
pages 12—14), he said that the legislative provision allow1ng for the rejection of
a defence counsel chosen by an accused was based on. the experience of the Federal
Republic of Germany. He explained that the decision was taken by the court
competent to decide on the substance of the case and that it could always be
appealed to the above-mentioned Special Court of Revision, which in those
circumstances was supplemented by a barrister and a professor of law. The case
law consisted of a single case only involving that provision, a case which,
incidentally, had ended in a decision not to Treject the lawyer concerned and

thus did not require the intervention of the Special Court..

9. He said that, in every ¢riminal case, all court costs, 1nclud1ng lawyers'! fees,
were met out of public funds. Nevertheless, the administration couldtry to recover
the amount from the accused if he was convicted, the competent court then
establishing what share of those costs to be borne by the party concerned. The
court usually decided that an individual found guilty was liable for the whole

of the costs. It would thén be up to the authorities to judge whether the decision
could be executed and the amounts in question recovered, in the light of the
economic position of the person concerned.

10; The casé of fees for an 1nterpreter hired for a trial was slightly different.
The general rule was that all necessary expenses incurred in conjunction w1th the
trial should 'be paid in the same manner. A few years previously, however, the ,
question had arisen as to whether interpreting costs constituted necessary expenses.
The €openhagen Court, which had dealt with the case, had decided, in accordance with -
the case’law of European Courts, that such costs should in no circumstances be.

borne by the accused. That decision has since become the official Jurlsprudence

of the Mlnlstry of Justloe. : :




CCPR/C/SR,251
page 4

11. The system of free legal a2id in civil cases was slightly different again.
Requests for aid were examined by the regional administrative authority and the
granting of free legal aid exempted the person from paying court costs and his
lawyer's fées. Levertheless, if the beneficiary of the aid lost the case, he
could be made liable for the lawyer's fees of the opposing party. In all cases,
the criteria for the decision were the apparent merits of the action undertaken
andmthe economic position of the applicant.

12. In connectlon with article 15 of the Covenant (COPR/C/1/Add.51, pages 15-16),
he explained that, in spite of the Constitution's silence on the point, it was an -
established prlnClple of Danish law that criminal legislation must be exempt from

any retroactive effect, He also pointed out an error in the translation of |
article 3 of the Danish Criminal Code on page 15 of the, original English, text

of the Report. The word "sentence" in the seventh line should be replaced by
the word "Judgement”

13. Finally, in connection with article 16 of the Covenant (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 16),
he said that the administrative authorities were obliged to assign to any 1ndlv1dual
confined because of irsanity or mental deficiency a person to assist him and act on
his behalf. In accordance with general legislation concerning legal capacity, . ..
every ingane or mentally deficient individual could have a permanent representative
appointed by an explicit legal decision.

14. The CHAIRMAN invited the members of the Commlttee to ask questions about the-
application of articles 23-27 of the Covenant, on the understanding that they could,
of course, also refer to other articles if they so desired.

15. WMp. PRADO VALLEJO sald with reference to the additional information
commmicated by Denmark (CCPR/C/l/Add 19) that he would like some clarifications.

16. Pirst of all, he would like to know, in connection with article 1 of -the
Covenant, what progress was being made in implementing the right of the population

of Greenland to self-determination and full autonomy. Secondly, he asked what

wa.s covered by the expression "offences against the Constitution', that were subject
to . the death penalty, which the Covenant, incidentally, under its article 6, tended

to abolish. Thirdly, he'noted, in connection with the inviolability of dwelling
enshrined in the Danish Comstitution, that the application of that principle could

be suspended in certain cases, such as to allow the administration access %o

documents which were ordlnarlly kept by private individuals. He wondered how that
suspension could be implemented in practice.

17. Fourthly, he wondered whether the status of the Evangelican Lutheran Church,
as the established church or, in other words, the existence of an official religion,
might not. jeopardize the freedom of religion laid down in article 18 of +the
Covenant.,  Citing the provision of article 68 of the Danish Constitution, he also
wondered whether it did not mean a_contrario that a person could be constrained to
make a persondl contribution to the eSUabllshed church or to his own denomination.
Fifthly, he would like to know, in comnection with article 19 of the Covenant,

what were the "substantial economic interests of public character" (article 109,
paragraph 1, of the Criminal Code) which might give rise to the suspension or
restriction of the right to freedom of expression and in what circumstances that
suspension or those restrictions could be put into effect. Finally, he noted that
Denmark reaffirmed the reservation it had made to article 20 of the Covenant and
that, consequently, it was not opposed to war propagarda, While reservations
were, of course, acceptable, they should not undermine the very essence of the
Covenant, to which the domestic law of States parties should gradually conform.




CCPR/C/SR.251
page 5

18, Mr. BOUZIRI began by pointing out that his question on the remedies available to
foreigners who were rofuuod entry into Demmark had not been. anawored.

19. Tn " oonneotlon w1th artlclo 3 of tne Covenant, he asked, with reference to the
first paragraph on page 42 of document CCPR/C/l/Add 51, what were the fields in which
Danish law guaranteed a wider measure of equality of men and women than was provided
for in the Covonant and .was tending towards providing still further guarantccs. In
his opinion, that statement was in contradiction with the reference in the previous
paragranvh to existing disparities between men and women which hampered accoss to
employment and vocational training.

20. He agreed with the comments made by Mr. Prado Vallejo regarding the exercise of
the right to frcedom of religion in Demmark and asked what was meant by- the expres 81on
"religious bodies dissenting from the established church" (article 69 of the |
Constitution, page 12 of document CCPR/C/1/Add.19). He would also like to know how
Denmark reconciled the right to freedom of religion with the provisions of section 5
of the Elementary School Act (page 13 of document CCPR/C/1/Add.19) which, intor alia,
excused a child from receiving instruction in religious knowledge when the party
having custody of the child declared 'in writing to the pr1n01na1 of the school that he
would himself provide the child with such instruction,

21, In connection with article 23 of the Covenant, he said that he was puzzled by the
right, which he considered improper, enjoyed by the chief administrative authority
under the Marriage and Dissolution of Marriage Act to authorize the marriage of a
person under 18 years of age by overruling the refusal of the parents to grant their.
consent (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 16). Hé wondered what appeal procedure was available.
to the parents in such a case, and to whom they could appecal, He also considered
improper the power of the chief administrative authority to determine, in the event of
a disagrecment between the parents, the amount to be paid in maintenance to the
children of a marriage following a separation or divorce (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 21).
S$ill in connection with the Marriage and Dissolution of Marriage Act, he asked what
was to be understood by the expression "any other act comparable to adultery"
(CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 20).

22. 1In connection with article 24 of the Covenant, he considered that the fen hours
of work which a young nerson could be required to perform, as appearcd from. :
chapter lO, section 60, paragraph 2, of the Working Enviromment Act

(CCPR/C/l/Add 51, page 23), to be not only excessive but also contrary to
1nternatlonal legislation on the subject.

23, With regard to article 27 of the Covenant, he associated hlmuclf with the comments
made by Mr., Prado Vallejo ‘concerning Greenland. He inquired whether the final

sentence of the second paragraph on page 3% of document CCPR/C/l/Add 51 did not mean
that the ponulatlon of Greenland was not entitled to accede to independence even if 1t
so desired.  With refeérence to the oopularWy elected bodies: 'in Greenland
(CCPR/C/1/43d.19, page 3), he would like %o know what they werc, on what basis they
had been elected and whether the indigenous population of Greenland was politically -
mature. He also asked what had been the point of the referendum on Greenland home rulo
(CCPR/C/l/Add 51, page 53), since the population had not had a choice between
independence and home rule, He' wanted to know whether all the elcctors had been




CCPR/C/SR.251
page 6

indigenous or whether some of them had been Danish by blood, whether some of. those
who had voted yes (12,756) had not been in favour of independence and, likewise,
whether those who had voted no (4,703) had not included some who were in favour of
independence and who were not satisfied with the home rule gtatus. In any case, he
would like to know who the indigenous peoples of Greenland were, how many of them
there were, what their way and conditions of 1lifs were and what languages they spoke,
and whether there were any of them who wanted independence., In general, he wanted
further information on Demmark's position regarding the right to self-determination
and on the efforts which its Government was making in favour of the exercise of that
right, particularly in Africa, the Middle Bast and Asia.

24. Mr, TARNOPOLSKY said, with reference to article 25 of the Covenant, that he was
surprised at the final provision of paragraph 29, subparagraph 1, of the Constitution
(CCPR/C/l/Add.Bl, page 26), With regard to paragraph 30, subparagraph 1, of the
Constitution (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 27), he wondered who decided that, in the eyes of
the public, a certain act made a person unworthy to be a member of the Folketing and
what criteria were applied. Furthermore, noting that "“the Act does not apply to
military posts and assignments' (CCPR/C/l/Add.Sl,_pagc 31, second paragraph), he
wondered how such posts and assignments could be considered to be part of the civil
gservice and whether access to wmilitary posts and assignments was actually forbidden
to women.

25. In connection with article 26 of the Covenant, he asked whether a few examples could
be given of judicial decisions on the implementation of the principle of equality before
the law, on which Danish legislation was based. Furthermore, he would like to know
vhether in Demmark, there was a distinction between "equality before the law" and

"equal protection by the law",

26, Lastly, in connection with article 27 of the Covenant, he associated himself with
the questions asked by Mr, Bouziri and also requested some information on the teaching
of indigenous languages in schools in Greenland and on the indigenous population's
access to higher education. ’

27. Mr., BANGA asked whether, in Demmark, church marriage had the same legal status

as civil marriage and whether the minister of religion could, like the mayor of the
district, ascertain that the future spouses met the requirements to contract marriage.
Some codes required that future spouses had to be of different sexes and he wondered
whether that condition was expressly indicated in Danish legislation or whether it was
simply understood. Since the free and full consent of the parties was one of the
conditions for marriage in Denmark, the question arose whether a marriage could be
amulled in the event of constraint or of mistaken identity..

28,  With regard to the situation of children, he wanted to know whether illegitimate
children could inherit from their natural father and what measures were being taken
to ensure that they were placed on an equal footing with legitimate children. .

29+ In comnection with article 25 of the Covenant, he noted, on page 26 of the
report (CCPR/C/1/Add . 51), that any Danish subject had the right to vote provided that
he had not been declared incapable of conducting his own affairs. He would like to
know whether such inedpacity was the result of a decision by a judicial body and
whether it was an ad hoc decision or whether it arose from the fact that the person
concerned was in tutelage or under guardianship.




CCPR/C/SR. 251
page

30. According to the report (CCPR/C/1/Add,.51, page 27), the suffrage in Denmark
was general and direct and, according to the Constitution, the ballot was
secret, It would be interesting therefore to know whether voting was obligatory
or not. ' '

31. He noted in the report (page 29) that a person.was not eligible for
election to the local govermment councils if he had been "convicted of an act
which in the general opinion makes him unworthy.of being a member of a local
government council', He would like to know what authority determined the
unworthiness, or whether it was a matter of famaApublica.

32, Lastly, he inquired whether the German mlnorlty in North Schleswig enjoyed
the support of the Danish State in the preservation of its culture and traditions.

33, Mr. GRAEFRATH said he noted thet Denmark was a constitutional monarchy in
which the royal power was hereditary and in which the King or Queen had a

decisive power in the matter of legislation, while being invested with, the
executive power. The question had already arisen as to whether the fact that,

in some countriecs, a citizen by naturalization could not be Pregident of the
Republic was compatible with article 25 of the Covenant. He asked how the .
fact that the executive power in Denmark was in the hands of a single family and
the monarch could be invested with it only through inheritance and provided

that he or she was a member of the Evangelical Lutheran Church could be considered
compatible with articles 2 and 25 of the Covenant.

34. Mr, SADT said he wondered why, in Demmark, the minimum age laid down for
marriage was the same for both sexes, whereas in general, for reasons based on
rnedical considerations, the minimum age for women was lower than that for men.
He also wondeved why the minimum age for marriage had been fixed at 18 ycars
and why, if young people wished to marry before the age of 18 years, they had
to obtain permission from the chief administrative authority rather than Just
the consent of their parents,

Mr, Prado Vallejo took the Chaix

35. . The informabion given on page 25 of the repoxrt (GCPR/C/l/Add.51) with

regard to the nationality of children seemed to indicate that Danish legislation
made a distinction between men and women, a distinction which was found in many
countries. He would like to know whether the represcntabtive of Denmark considered
that such a distinction was a legitimate one in the 1light of the Covenant.

%6, Mr. PEDERSEN (Denﬁark), replying to the questions concerning Greenland,

drew attention to the information given on pages 32, 33, 52 and 53 of the report
(ccPR/C/1/444.51). In 1953, the new Danish Constitution had determined that
Greenland was to form an integral part of the Kingdom of Denmark. That decision
had never been challenged. When, in 1975, the Commission on Home Rule in Greenland
had been established, it had been decided that the Commission's work would be
based ou the principle that home rule for Greenland would safeguard the unity of
the Kingdon of Denmark, The Commission had included seven members of the
Greenland Provincial Council, so the integration of Greenland into the Kingdom

of Denmark had been fully supported by the people of Greenland. In the 1978
referendum, the Greenland Home Rule Act had been approved by T0% of those voting,
representing approximately 27,000 out of a tobtal population of 45,000 persons
(854 of whon were Greenlanders, the rest being mainly Danes. The home rule
system, set forth in an amnex to the Danish report, showed that Greenlandic was
the principal language of Greenland and that it was used for official purposes.
Cultural questions were, of course, within the competence of the Greenland
authorities,




CCPR/0/SR. 251
page 8

37.. On account of the small number of its inhabitants, Greenland had no
university. The existing higher educational establishments were responsible for
teacher training. University education was, however, provided in Denmark with
the suppoxrt of the Danish Government.

38. There was no German minority problem in Denmark. An agrcement had been
concluded in that connection with the Federal Republic of Germany, and the school
and cultural activities of the German minorities enjoyed the support of the
Danish State, which peid G5% of the costs of the German schools. The replies
to a number of the questions. put regarding the German minorities and Greenland
were to be found in the memorandum which the representatives of Demmark intended
to distribute to the members of the Human Rights Committee. His Govermment was
‘currently preparing, for the Sub-Commission on the Prevention of Discrimination
and Protection of Minorities, a report on the ethnic minorities in Greenland.
That report could also be distributed to members of the Committee.

39. Lastly, he was intending to forward, to the Sccretariat for distribution to
nembers of the Committee, a report on the equality of the sexes iniDenmark.

40. Mr, DIEYE said that Ule, too, would like to know what was meant by "adulbery
or-any other act comparable to adultery" (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 20), particularly
since very precise proofs of adultery were usually required in legal systems.

41, In Demmark, the dissolution of a marriage was cbtained either by administrative
decree or by judgement (page 19 of the report). He asked the representative of
Denmark for some further information on the circumstances in which an administrative
decree could dissolve a marriage and the remedies available to either spouse against
an administrative measure which could be prejudicial to their interests.

42, He also asked whether marriages celebrated by ministers of religion other
than ministers of the established church in Denmark had the same legal status as
marriages celebrated by ministers of the established church.

43, Lastly, he would like to know whether a person naturalized by decree

enjoyed immediately the same rights as a person who had acquired Danish nationality
through jus soli or jus sanguinis, or whether such o person was subgcct to certain
incapacities for a specific period of time.

44+ Mr. KOULISHEV said he moted, in connection with article 26 of the Covenant,
that neither the Danish Constitution nor Danish legislation made any specific
nention of the general principle of equality before the law. That gap was made
good. by the fact that the principle of equality before the law was considered

to be a general prlnClple of Danish law and by the fact that article 26 of the
Covenant was regarded as having been 1ncorporated into Danish domestic law.

The principle could therefore be applied by the courts and administrative bodies,
He wondered if the represcntative of Demmark could cite some cases in which the
courts or administrative bodies had applied the principle, ei thor as a gencral
principle or as a principle set forth in the Covenant.

45, Mr, TOMUSCHAT said he wondered whether article 1, paragraph 2, of the Danish
Nationality Act, as amended in 1978, which provided that every foundling found
‘in the Realm of Denmark should be regarded as a Danish national until evidence

to the contrary was produced, could not be applied to children born of stateless
parents. He understood that the latter did not acquire Danish nationality. He
would like to know whet was their legal position and whether their situation
could be regarded as compabible with article 24, paragraph 3, of the Covenant,
which stated that "Every child has the right to acquire a nationality".




CCPR/C/SR 251
page 9

46. He did not share Mr. Tarnopolsky's opinion regarding the construction to.be
placed upon article 26 of the Covenant. In his view, article 26 did not Timit 1tse1f
to establishing the equality of all persons before the law; there had also o be
equality within the law. MAccording to the Danish report (CCPR/C/1/4d4d.51, p.31),

it would appear that equality was considered to be an administrative rule, not a
constitutional one. He wondered whether there was, in Denmark, a constitutional
principle of equality and whether the legislator was bound to respect the pr1n01p1e :
of equality when promulgatlng laws., :

A7. The status of the Evangelical Iutheran Church,.which, under article 4 of the
Constitution of the Kingdom of Denmark, "shall be the established church ... and, as
such, shall be supported by the State," and articles 66 to 70 of the Danish
Constitutional Act on the subject of religious freedoms might appear at first sight
to be"in contradiction with the Covenant on account of the discrimination which they
established in favour of the established church, However, a careful reading of the
Covenant revealed that the Covenant protected only natural persons - individuals -
and not legal persons. Article 26, for example, provided that "All persons are equal
before the law and are entitled w1thout any discrimination ...". ILikewise, the
Optional Protocol to the Internatlonal Oovenant on Civil and Political Rights
referred in erticle 1 +t0 "individuals ~ Finally, the nature of the rights
envisaged by the Covenant itself (artloles 6 to 13) clearly showed that the persons.
protected by the Covenant were natural persons. On the other hand, equality before
the couxrts (artlcle 14), would be conceivable in the case of legal persons.

48, Nevertheless, a dlfferent reasoning could be applled to the guarantees prov1ded
for in articles 18, 21 and 22 of the Covenant. If associations founded by individuals
were victims of dlscrlmlnatlon, they could not, as such, be protected by the Covenant;
but there would surely be an infringement of the right of individuals to associate
freely with others, to form and join trade unions, for example, as provided for in
article 22 of the Covenant.  The Committee would need to be informed of the
consequences of the pre-eminent status accorded to the Evangelical Imtheran Church,
whether it was accompanied by privileges and whether it was prejudicial to the rlghts
of persons having other religious convictions. : :

49. Sir Vincent EVANS gaid he wondered what construction should be placed upon
article 23, paragraph 1, of the:Covenant, which stated that "The family is the
natural and fundamental group unit of society and is entitled to protection by
society and the State". As traditionally conceived, the family was based on marrlage.
In some countries, however, it was becoming increasingly common and socially -
acceptable for persons who were not married to live together and to have children.
He wondered whether such couples constituted families in the meaning of article 23
and what the reply to that question would be-in the light of current experience in
Dermark. On the construction placed upon the word "family" would depend the
implementation of the right "to protection by society and the State", recognized
in respect of the family by article 23, paragraph 1. The question could have
important consequences in unexpected: fields, such as that of taxation: in some
countries married couplés were discriminated against as compared with couples who
were not married, It was doubtful whether that was compatible with article 23,
paragraph 1. ' ' :

'Mr;'Mavrommatis resumed the chair.




CCPR/C/SR. 251
page 10

50« Mr, HOIM said he would reply first of all to the questions put concerning
marriage and divorce. In Denmark, separation and divorce could be obtained by
administrative decree or by judgement, as indicated in the report. The intervention
of theé administrative authorities in such a field, which mi ight appear surprising in
the contemporary world, was to be explained by hlstorloal reasons., Under the Danish
Constitution of 1645 the King-had had the general power to grant derogations from
the -law. At a time when the conditions for divorce were extremely strict, the King
could, under that general power, grant a derogation therefrom. The power of the
administrative authorities in matters of separation and divorce was thus a vestige
of that royal prerogative. Nevertheless, to obtain a separation or a divorce by
administrative decree, the parties had to agree not only on the fact of desiring a
separation or a divorce but also on the conditions thereof. If they Aid not agree, -
a judgement was required. The administrative authority was also responsible for
fixing the amount of the maintenance money granted when a separation or a divorce
took place -~ even though the actual decision on the grant of the maintenance was
taken by the court - and for granting permission to marry to persons aged under

18 years ~ a power which had formerly been vested in the King - as a requirement
additional to parental consent or as a separate redquirement in cases where parental
consent was unjustifiably refused. There was no lower age limit below which the '
administrative authority could not authorize marriage but in practice, the minimum
age was a little over 15 years for women, the admlnlstratlve authority also taking -
exper’t opinlon into account, :

51. Although church marriage and civil marriage were both recognized, as was
indicated in the report (CCPR/C/1/Add.51, page 16), the civil authority (the mayor
of the district) was responsible for ascertaining that all the conditions required
t6 contract marriage were fulfilled and for delivering .a document to that effect to
the future spouses. The subsequent ceremony could be either civil or religious,
depending on the wishes of the future spousess in either case it would have the
same legal status. A church marriage could be celebrated not only by the
representative of the established church but also by a member of the clergy of

any religious denomination provided that he had been duly empowered to do so by

the Ministry for Church Affairs.

52. Although there was no specific legal provision to that effect; the rule that -
marriage could be contracted only between persons of different sexes was a firmly
establiched one., One of the grounds for divorce was adultery and any other act
-comparable to adultery (Danlsh Marriage and Dissolution. of Marriage Act, section 37).
Acts which might be considered as comparable to adultery would include, for example,
sexual acts between persons of diffent sexes not taken to full intercourse or
similar acts between persons of the same sex. If a marriage had been contracted

as a result of a mistake or under constraint, it could be declared to be null and
void under a procedure for anmnulment, which dlffered from divorce or separatlon. :

5%, The right to vote and to be elected (article 25 of the Covenant) was dealt with
. on pages 26 et seq of the Danish report (CCPR/C/1/Add.51). Mr. Tarnopolsky had
expressed surprise that the Danish Constitutional Act provided, in paragraph 29,
that conviction or receipt of public assistance amounting to poor relief could
entail disfranchisement. Mr., Tarnopolsky was right in suspecting that such a
provision had not been incorporated into the legislation. In fact, as was indicated
on page 28 of the same report, the General Eleetions Act contained no provision to
the effect that persons who had been convicted or who were receiving public assistance
would be deprived of the right to vote. It was an obsolete constitutional provision
which had not been repealed., Under paragraph 30 of the Constitutional Act, a person
who had been convicted of an act which made him unworthy to be a member of the
Folketing could not be elected. It was the folketing iteelf that todk the relevant
decision (paragraph 23 of the same Act).




CCPR/C/SR. 251
page 11

54. The phrase "provided that he has not been declared incapable of conducting his
own affairg" in paragraph 29 of the Conotltutlonal Act, meant that minors or persons
who, had, been’ declared incapable by a judicial decision (for reasgons of mental
111ness,'for example) could hot take part in elections to the Tolketing.

55. Another question had concerned paragraph 31, subparagraph 1, of the Constitutional
Act, the text of which was given on page 27 of the Danish report in the following

form° "The members of. the Folketing shall be elected by general and direct balloth,

It had been asked whether the ballot.was thus not a secret one. He could assure

the Committee that, in the Danish text of the Danish Constitutional Act, of which

he had two copies before him, it was clearly stated that the ballot was "general,
direct and secret". The absence of the word "secret" in the English text was
undoubtedly a printing error. -

56. The principle of equality before the law. (article 26 of the Covenant) was not
expressly stated in the Constitutional Act or in any other law; it was, nevertheless,
considered a general principle of Danish law (page 31.of the report), The report
indicated that the principle served, in particular, to restrict.the exercise of
discretionary powers by admlnlstratlve authorities, central and local. It had been
asked whether that was a constitutional prineiple which could limit the power of
‘the legislator. The answer was that it could not, in the sense that the Parliament
was sovereign, .except in thosé matters where there was a constitutional provision,
and the principle of equality before the law was not one of them.  The fact that

the principle of equality before the law was considered to be a general principle

of Danish law meant that there was, in actual fact, no example of a law violating
that principle and that if a bill violating the principle was tabled, it would not -
be adopted by Parliament. It had also been asked whether the courts had the power
to declare that a law was invalid because it ran counter to the principle of equality
before the law. The courts considered that they were empowered to refuse to enforce
a law which was unconstitutional, and when a case had arisen the view had been
taken that, if the principle of equality had been flagrantly violated, the case
would have to be referred to the Supreme Court. In general, equality before the
law was a firmly established principle of legal policy. When bills were sent to

the Ministry of Justice for examination before their submission to Parliament,

their conformity with the principle of equality before the law was investigated
with particular thoroughness. Furthermore, article 26 of the Covenant had
mandatory force for Denmark,

57. It had been asked whether the existence of an established church did not run
counter to freedom of religion (article 18 of the Covenant). In Demmark that
question had heen studied in some depth, not only in connection with article 18

of the Covenant but alsc in connection with article 9 of the Buropean Convention on
Human Rights, which dealt with freedom of religion. The prevailing opinion in
Denmark was that the State had, in that respect, primarily a negative obligation to
refrain from infringing the various freedoms guaranteed; it was not positively
bound to grant privileges to all or to each. Even the fact that the State provided,
in public schools, a moral or religious education based on the Christian religion
could not be considered as discriminatory, provided that such education was not
compulsory for the children of parents who had different phllosophiep of 1life or
different ethnics.

58. With regard to the privileges enjoyed by the established church, he pointed
out that the report submitted by Demmark in 1977 (CCPR/C/1/Add.19) reproduced
articles 67 to 78 of the Danish Constitutional Act on the subject of religious
freedoms., He drew the Committee's attention to article 68 of that Act, whexreby




CCPR/C/SR.251
page 12

"No one sghall be liable to make personal contributions to any denominations other
than the one to which he adheres'". To ensure respect for that provision Danish law
provided that the established church was financed by a special tax for which only
members of that church were liable. In-that commection, it should be borne in mind
that the vast majority (89 or 90%) of the inhabitants of Denmark were members of
the establl shed church. .

59« In Denmark's opinion a constitutional monarchy was not in contradiction with
article 25 of the Covenant. The régime was essentially a parliamentary democracy,
and any decision by the King had to be countersigned by a minister, as provided for‘
in artlcle 14 of the Constitution.

60. Replying to the questions put by Sir Vincent Evans as to whether the traditional
construction or a broader one was to be placed on the word "family" (article 23 of

the Covenant), he said that the question of "common law marriages" had recently been
carefully studied in Denmark, though not in the context of the Covenant., A commiftee
had been instructed to cxamine the need to provide a legal status for couples who

were not marricd - a sitatus which would govern relations between the parties themselves
and vis-a-vis the children born of the union. Thus under Danisgh law, the mother of

a child born out of wedlock automatically obtained custody of the child. The law

had recently been amended so as to permit in certain circumstances - which would cover
the case of "common law marriages' — the father to obtain such custody. Account was
also taken of the existence of such "marriages" in a number of situations: for
example, the law required that a judge should declave himself incompetent where his
wife was one of the parties to a case, that provision was construed as also applying
where one of the parties was not the judge's w1fe but a woman who was living with

him,

61. It would also be useful to know whether the protection against arbitrary or
unlawful interference with privacy, family and home, as guaranteed by article 17
of the Covenant (and by article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights)

also extended to such common law marraiges. The question called for further study.

The méeting rose at 6.15 p.m.




